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2515 Venture Oaks Way. Suite 135

Sacramento. CA 95833
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To the Board of DIrectors
South Feather Water & Power Agency
Oroville, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of South Feather Water &
Power Agency (the Agency) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, which comprise the
Agency's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of South Feather Water & Power Agency's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities, of the South Feather Water & Power Agency, as of December 31,
2009 and 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Audffing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 12, 2010, on our
consideration of South Feather Water & Power Agency 's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of our audit.

The managemenfs discussion and analysis and supplementary information on pages 3 through 11 and 44 through
46, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inqUiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit lh~ information and express no
opinion on it.

fI\~.~~J)Ai·ltLL?A s
Sacramento, California
April 12, 2010

PRINCIPALS

Chris A. Mann. CPA. CFP' John R. Urrutia. CPA' Michelle O. Nelson, CPA. CFE, CVA' Kriss Ann Mann. CPA, CCPS

Christine L. Collins. EA' Justin 1. Williams. CPA. CVA' Neil J. Beeman. CPA



SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

This discussion and analysis is part of the overall financial report. The basic financial statements that follow make up
the other part of the report. 

The South Feather Water and Power Agency (the Agency) implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34 for the statement period ended December 31, 2003. GASB No. 34 establishes financial
reporting standards for state and local governments, including special districts such as the Agency.

The South Feather Water and Power Agency, formerly Oroville-Wyandotte Irrigation District (OWID), was formed in
1919 as an irrigation district under the Irrigation District Law, Division 11 of the Water Code (§ 20500 et seq.) of the
State of California, for purposes of supplying water for irrigation. The Agency presently includes approximately
54,000 acres in southeastern Butte County and encompasses the unincorporated areas adjacent to the City of
Oroville, as well as the unincorporated communities of Kelly Ridge, Bangor, and Palermo. The Agency area has a
population of approximately 17,500, and currently provides water services to approximately 6,700 residential
customers (domestic water) and 500 irrigation customers (raw water).

The Agency has water rights from the south fork of the Feather River and certain tributaries for hydroelectric
generation purposes, which water may also be diverted by the Agency each year for consumptive uses. The Agency
owns certain hydroelectric facilities, the power from which is presently sold to Pacific Gas and Electric Company
(PG&E).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

 Assets of the South Feather Water & Power Agency exceeded liabilities by $45,397,436 (net assets) as of

December 31, 2009. This represents a decrease of $2,023,497, or 4.3% from 2008.

 The Water Division's operating revenues decreased by $1,756,235 or 29.4% from the prior year. The 2009

decrease primarily resulted from a contract to transfer surplus water in 2008 to the State Water Project

Contractors Authority. The Water Division's operating expenses increased by $253,107 or 4.7% from the

prior year.  The increase was caused by the recognition of Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (see

note 14) and a general increase in the cost of salaries and benefits.  

 The Power Division's operating revenues decreased by $5,716,432 or 38.6% from the prior year.  The

decreased revenues resulted from PG&E paying for power plant modernization, upgrades, and repairs in

the prior year.  The Power Division's operating expenses increased from 2008 in the amount of $822,646 or

9.4%. The increase in expenses from 2008 to 2009 was caused by maintenance and repair work at the

powerhouses and dams, the recognition of OPEB (see note 14) and a general increase in the cost of

salaries and benefits.  

 The Water Division's net non-operating income decreased by $325,111 or 48.6% from the prior year.

Reduced revenue from System Capacity Charges in 2009 and a significant refund from the ACWA/JPIA

Retrospective Premium Adjustment Stabilization Fund for its property, liability, and workers compensation

insurance coverage received in 2008 account for the decrease from 2008 to 2009.

 The Power Division net non-operating loss decreased by $86,207 or 16.0% from the prior year. The majority

of this decrease was attributed to a decrease in interest expense.

 Capital asset additions totaled $1,047,385, and net capital asset deletions totaled $51,278.

 Construction-in-progress decreased by $473,714 from last year as the Power Division’s Microwave Path

upgrade project was completed. 

 Relicensing costs incurred during the year totaled $157,896 and the project costs expended through 2009

was $5,583,820. 

 The total of the Agency’s long-term liabilities was decreased by $4,906,113 due to principal and interest

payments on outstanding debt. 
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Agency’s basic financial statements. They
are comprised of two components: 1) fund financial statements and, 2) notes to the financial statements.

Fund financial statements – A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Agency, like other state and local governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the
funds of the Agency are considered to be proprietary funds.

Proprietary funds – The Agency maintains two proprietary funds that are classified as enterprise funds. The Agency
uses these two enterprise funds to separately account for its water and power divisions.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements as such the
Agency has chosen to present only fund financial statements. The proprietary fund financial statements provide
separate information for the Water and Power Division funds since both are considered to be major funds of the
Agency. 

The 2009 proprietary fund financial statements may be found on pages 12 - 16 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can
be found on pages 22 - 43 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Year-over-year changes in net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
In the case of South Feather Water & Power Agency, assets exceeded liabilities by $45,397,436 as of December 31,
2009.

The largest portion of the Agency’s net assets (91%) are invested in capital assets (e.g. land and water rights,
source of supply, pumping plant, water treatment facilities, transmission and distribution facilities, buildings and
equipment, construction-in-progress and relicensing-in-progress), less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is still outstanding. The Agency uses these capital assets to provide services to the community; consequently
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Agency’s investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to pay these liabilities.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

The following table summarizes the Agency’s assets, liabilities and net assets as of December 31, 2009 compared
to the same information as of December 31, 2008.

SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY'S NET ASSETS

2009 2008

Current and other assets $ 4,176,245 $ 10,136,170
Restricted assets 3,613,986 2,644,300
Net capital assets 46,962,022 49,677,877
Other assets 102,686 111,599

TOTAL ASSETS 54,854,939 62,569,946

Current liabilities 4,089,965 9,659,342
Long-term liabilities 5,367,538 5,489,671

TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,457,503 15,149,013

Invested in capital, net of related debt 41,507,962 39,952,940
Restricted 3,682,365 3,049,644
Unrestricted 207,109 4,418,349

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 45,397,436 $ 47,420,933

A portion of the Agency’s net assets, categorized as Restricted Net Assets $3,682,365 (8%) represents resources
that are subject to external restriction on how they may be used. The portion of the Agency’s Net Assets categorized
as Unrestricted Net Assets $207,109 (0.5%) may be used to meet the Agency’s ongoing obligations to the public
and it’s customers.

As of December 31, 2009, the Agency reported positive balances in all three categories of net assets.

5



SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Analysis of the Agency’s operations:

The following chart provides a summary of the Agency’s Sources of Revenue for the year ended December 31,
2009. 

 18%Domestic Water Sales

 2%Irrigation Water Sales

70% Sale of Electricity

6% Other Services
4% Property Taxes

0%  Other *

* Other, System Capacity Charges 0%, Interest and Penalty 0%, Other Non-Operating 0%

2009 Sources of Revenue

As the Sources of Revenue Chart above shows, $9,772,356, or 70% of the Agency’s 2009 revenue came from the
generation of hydroelectric power. An additional $2,674,591, or 20% came from Domestic and Irrigation Water
Sales. The remaining 1,451,605, or 10% came from a variety of sources as shown above.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

The following chart provides a summary of the Agency’s Operating Expenses for the year ended December 31,
2009.

 4%Water Treatment

 8%Tranmission and Distribution

 2%Customer Accounts

 21%Plant Operations

 14%Routine and Nonrountine Maintenance

24% General and Administrative

24% Depreication and Amortizaion

3% Interest and Other

2009 Expenses

The Expenses Chart above shows that in 2009 the largest single expense is for depreciation and amortization due to
the Agency’s heavy investment in capital assets. The 2009 depreciation expense is $3,764,802, or 24%. General
and administrative expenses account for $3,789,161, or 24% of the total, routine and non-routine maintenance is
$2,173,505, or 14%, plant operations is $3,468,380, or 21%, and the remaining $2,699,471, or 17%, is made up of
various other expenses as shown above.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

The following table provides a summary of the Agency’s operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 versus
December 31, 2008.

SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

2009 2008

REVENUES

Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 13,314,919 $ 20,787,586
Operating contributions 28,490 237,759
Capital contributions 48,048 -

Total program revenue 13,391,457 21,025,345

General revenues:
Property taxes & ERAF Surcharge 517,257 529,162
Gain (loss) on sale of assets (4,207) (3,772)
Investment earnings 37,886 83,345

Total general revenue 550,936 608,735

TOTAL REVENUES 13,942,393 21,634,080

EXPENSES

Water and Power 15,965,890 14,918,301

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (2,023,497) 6,715,779

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 47,420,933 40,705,154

NET ASSETS ENDING OF YEAR $ 45,397,436 $ 47,420,933

As the table above shows, program revenues make up $13,391,457, or 96% of the 2009 total revenue and
21,025,345, or 97% of the 2008 total. Program revenues consist of domestic and irrigation water sales, water
transfer sales, generation of hydroelectric power, customer services and installations, system capacity fees and
capital contributions from developers. 

General revenues account for only $550,936, or 4%, and $608,735, or 3%, of total revenue in 2009 and 2008
respectively. General revenues come from property taxes, investment earnings, and any gains or losses on the sale
or disposal of an asset.

Total revenue decreased by $7,691,687, or 36%, from 2008 to 2009. This decrease was primarily due to a water
transfer sale in 2008.  Total expenses increased by $1,047,589, or 7%.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGENCY’S FUNDS

Proprietary funds – The Agency’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail. The proprietary funds are specific funds that track activity
independently for the Water and Power Divisions.

Unrestricted net assets of the respective proprietary funds are: Water Division $1,496,248 and Power Division -
$(1,289,139). 

In 2009, the Water Division total net assets decreased by $1,050,686, while the Power Division total net assets
decreased by $972,811.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

CAPITAL ASSETS

The South Feather Water & Power Agency’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) amounts
to $46,962,022 as of December 31, 2009. In 2009, the net capital assets made up 86% of the Agency’s total assets.

The following table provides a detailed breakdown of net capital assets for both 2009 and 2008.

CAPITAL ASSETS NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

2009 2008

Land, land rights and water rights $ 1,313,757 $ 1,313,757
Source of supply 83,333,984 83,333,984
Pumping plant 362,296 362,296
Miners Ranch Treatment Plant, treatment and transmission and

distribution facilities 32,019,202 31,841,210
General plant and yard 10,895,807 9,761,874
Tail Water Depression System 124,445 124,445
Photovoltaic System - MRTP 2,142,701 2,142,701
Recreational facilities 948,385 948,385
Construction in progress 774,883 1,248,597
FERC relicensing in progress 5,583,820 5,425,924

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (90,537,258) (86,825,296)

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS $ 46,962,022 $ 49,677,877

Major capital asset events during 2009 included an upgrade to the Power Division microwave path, commencement
of an expansion study for Miners Ranch Treatment Plant, and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
relicensing project, now in its final stages. 

Additional information on the Agency’s capital assets can be found in note 5 of this report.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Agency’s debt consisted of the following:

OUTSTANDING FINANCING DEBT

2009 2008

Revenue bonds payable $ 2,012,000 $ 6,231,000
Installment payment agreements (COPs) 2,685,000 3,360,000
Contracts payable 121,824 133,937

TOTAL FINANCING DEBT $ 4,818,824 $ 9,724,937
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

The Agency’s ratings for its debt obligations are as follows:

$2,685,000
South Feather Water and Power Agency

Certificate of Participation
(Solar Photovoltaic Project)

Series 2003
Ratings: Standard and Poor’s (S&P): “A”

$5,275,000
South Feather Water and Power Agency

Sly Creek Power Project
2004 A Hydroelectric Refunding Revenue Bonds

Rating: Moody’s: “Baa3”
Standard & Poor’s: “BB+”

In 2003, the Agency, through the Oroville-Wyandotte Financing Corporation (now South Feather Water and Power
Agency Financing Corporation), issued $2,685,000 in revenue certificates of participation. Proceeds from this
financing were used to finance the purchase of a photovoltaic (PV) solar system at the Miner’s Ranch Water
Treatment Plant in 2004 and to fund improvements to the Agency’s administration building in 2005 and 2006.

On April 1, 2004, the Corporation issued tax-exempt 2004A Hydroelectric Refunding Revenue Bonds totaling
$5,275,000. In addition, the Agency issued taxable 2004B Hydroelectric Refunding bonds totaling $160,000.
Proceeds from these bond issues, along with $162,440 provided by PG&E were used to refund $5,240,000 in Sly
Creek Power Project 1993 Hydroelectric Refunding Revenue Bonds outstanding as of April 1, 2004.

Agency debt not rated for investment purposes are as follows:

1960 South Fork Power Revenue Bonds of Oroville-Wyandotte Irrigation District,  maturing July 1, 2010.  These
bonds are secured by semi-annual payments from Pacific Gas & Electric pursuant to an agreement signed in
conjunction with the issuance of the bonds.   

1980 Miners Ranch Domestic Revenue Bonds,  maturing October 1, 2020 with bonds outstanding in the amount of
$1,480,000 as of December 31, 2009.  These bonds are secured by revenues generated by the Miners Ranch
Treatment Plant.   

1995 Certificates of Participation, matured April 1, 2009.  

Additional information on the Agency’s long-term debt can be found in note 8 of the financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS & SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

In September 2003, South Feather Water and Power Agency’s Board of Directors approved the Miners Ranch
Treatment Plant (MRTP) Solar Photovoltaic Project to be financed through the issuance and sale of $2,685,000 of
Certificates of Participation (COP).

The COP financing has a 20-year term, with annual debt service of 140,069 for 2009 and approximately $262,100
annually through 2024. The Agency’s actual electricity expense at the treatment plant for 2003 was $151,852 and
the solar project is designed to “zero out” the annualized Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) bill for MRTP. Prior to
construction of the Solar Photovoltaic Project, SFWP had experienced a five-year trend of electricity costs increasing
by over 17% annually, even with the efforts of management and treatment plant staff implementing energy-saving
improvements. 
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

In 2004, the treatment plants utility cost was $52,745 down from $151,852 in 2003 - a reduction of 65%. In 2005 and
2006, the utility costs were $7,092 and $8,768, a 95% and 94% reduction in cost from 2003. This represents a
savings of $144,760 and $143,084 quantified in terms of 2003 electricity rates. The 2005 and 2006 electricity cost
savings already more than offset the current annual debt service payments for the 2003 COP.  For 2007, 2008, and
2009, the utility costs were less than $40,000 per year. 

In January of 2005, the Agency sold a piece of property that previously was used as a reservoir site for its domestic
distribution system in the Kelly Ridge area. The sales price was $675,000 and net cash received from the sale was
$618,658. The sales agreement required cleaning up the site and removing the abandoned reservoir material. The
project was complete in 2007 at a total cost of $85,098.

In April of 2005, a major landslide occurred at the Woodleaf Powerhouse. A section of the hillside immediately above
the powerhouse yard gave way and slid into the yard, knocking over a power pole containing the 2.3kV circuit to the
Forbestown dam and the penstock control house. In early May of 2005, another portion of the hillside close to the
penstock slid down. PG&E spent several months working on a mitigation plan to provide long-term stability to the
slope. By October of 2005, the slope stabilization project was underway with the work being performed by Neil’s
Controlled Blasting. The project was completed in May of 2006, a little over a year from the date the initial landslide
occurred.

In May of 2005 an agreement was reached with Yuba County Water District, now the North Yuba Water District
(NYWD) that defines the settlement of water rights and disposition of net hydroelectric project revenues after 2010.
SFWP will continue to own, in its own name - not jointly - its historic consumptive water rights on the South Fork of
the Feather River. NYWD will be given sole title to the previously jointly held permits – 11516 and 11518. Both
districts supported the other’s efforts to extend the permits and jointly pursued the environmental documents to
receive permit time extensions. The CEQA processing was completed in May of 2006 for the water-right permit time
extension application and the petition was filed with the State Resources Control Board in June of 2006. 

The FERC License that allows the Agency to operate the hydroelectric project expired in March of 2009. In January
of 2002, the Agency approved the FERC Relicensing consulting services agreement between SFWP and Devine
Tarbell and Associates (DTA). As previously noted, the relicensing process appears to be nearing its completion.
Until the relicensing process is completed, operations continue under the current FERC license conditions. 

Overall, the work is on schedule. In 2007, the Agency and its consultants continued the process, including finalizing
studies and continuing consultation with resources agencies and tribes. The draft license application was distributed
in July of 2006. The license application was filed with FERC in March of 2007.

Overall, the consulting services work is within budget. As of December 31, 2009, $5,052,346 had been expended on
DTA consulting services, which is approximately 99% of the total contract. As of December 31, 2009, total project-to-
date expenses are $5,583,520.

The Agency has experienced minor growth of less than 1% with its new water connections.  In 2009, the total
connections were 7,104.  A study for the expansion for the Miners Ranch Treatment Plant is underway and
proceeding cautiously with the current economic situation. 

The current power-purchase agreement with PG&E terminates on June 30, 2010.  At its April 28, 2009 Board
meeting, the Agency agreed to enter into a ten-year power purchase agreement with PG&E beginning July 1, 2010.
Revenue to the Agency from this agreement is a combination of variable, market based payments, and a fixed
monthly payment, the combined amount currently estimated to be $1,900,000 per month or $22,800,000 per year.
Operations of the facilities will continue to be the responsibility of the Agency. 

FINANCIAL CONTACT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the South Feather Water and Power Agency’s
finances for those with an interest in the Agency’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional financial information should be directed to South Feather Water and Power
Agency, at 2310 Oro-Quincy Hwy, Oroville, California 95966.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

Business -Type Activities

Water Division Power Division Totals

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 1,766,198 $ 640,258 $ 2,406,456
Cash with fiscal agents (Note 2) - 68,379 68,379
Accounts receivable 552,277 - 552,277
Accrued interest receivable 1,994 - 1,994
Property taxes receivable 252,931 - 252,931
Inventory 132,148 637,658 769,806
Prepaid expenses 68,849 46,987 115,836
Loans receivable (Note 3) 5,157 - 5,157
Due from other funds (Note 4) 3,265 144 3,409

Total Current Assets 2,782,819 1,393,426 4,176,245

Restricted Assets

Cash with fiscal agents (Note 2) 266,329 3,347,657 3,613,986

Total Restricted Assets 266,329 3,347,657 3,613,986

Capital Assets (Note 5)

Capital assets 45,575,818 91,923,462 137,499,280
Less: accumulated depreciation (18,268,669) (72,268,589) (90,537,258)

Total Capital Assets, net 27,307,149 19,654,873 46,962,022

Other Assets

Bond discounts, net of accumulated amortization of
$760,187 (Note 8) 102,686 - 102,686

Total Other Assets 102,686 - 102,686

TOTAL ASSETS $ 30,458,983 $ 24,395,956 $ 54,854,939

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2009

Business - Type Activities

Water Division Power Division Totals

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 71,135 $ 266,401 $ 337,536
Salaries and wages payable 41,934 31,798 73,732
Bond/COP interest payable 53,902 - 53,902
Customer deposits 23,998 - 23,998
Contractor bond payable 85,506 - 85,506
Payroll taxes payable 8,544 8,723 17,267
Deferred revenue (Note 6) - 1,570,233 1,570,233
Net OPEB obligation (Note 14) 676,643 398,099 1,074,742
Other payables 11,070 3,142 14,212
Accrued bond interest payable - 11,709 11,709
Due to other funds (Note 4) 144 3,265 3,409
Current portion of compensated absences (Note 9) 21,000 28,000 49,000
Current portion of long-term liabilities (Note 8) 242,719 532,000 774,719

Total Current Liabilities 1,236,595 2,853,370 4,089,965

Long-Term Liabilities

Compensated absences (Note 9) 395,381 292,816 688,197
Loan payable (Note 7) - 635,236 635,236
Long-term liabilities (Note 8) 4,044,105 - 4,044,105

Long-Term Liabilities 4,439,486 928,052 5,367,538

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,676,081 3,781,422 9,457,503

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 23,020,325 18,487,637 41,507,962
Restricted for debt service 266,329 3,416,036 3,682,365
Unrestricted (Note 10) 1,496,248 (1,289,139) 207,109

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 24,782,902 $ 20,614,534 $ 45,397,436

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Business - Type Activities

Water Division Power Division Totals

OPERATING REVENUE

Domestic water sales $ 2,444,993 $ - $ 2,444,993
Irrigation water sales 229,598 - 229,598
Sale of electricity 927,559 8,844,797 9,772,356
Other services 619,750 248,222 867,972

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 4,221,900 9,093,019 13,314,919

OPERATING EXPENSES

Source of supply 14,113 - 14,113
Water treatment 565,344 - 565,344
Environmental health and safety 74,778 - 74,778
Transmission and distribution 1,308,958 - 1,308,958
Customer accounts 279,739 - 279,739
Plant operations 265,969 3,202,411 3,468,380
Routine and nonroutine maintenance - 2,173,505 2,173,505
General and administrative 2,502,050 1,287,111 3,789,161
Other operating expenses 54,889 - 54,889

Less: expense credits (214,105) - (214,105)
Depreciation 804,236 2,951,653 3,755,889
Amortization 8,913 - 8,913

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 5,664,884 9,614,680 15,279,564

NET OPERATING LOSS (1,442,984) (521,661) (1,964,645)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

System capacity charges 28,490 - 28,490
Interest and penalty income 36,502 1,384 37,886
Property taxes 517,253 - 517,253
ERAF surcharge 4 - 4
Gain (loss) on sale and disposition of capital assets (4,207) - (4,207)
Interest expense (233,792) (348,657) (582,449)
Trustee expense - (103,877) (103,877)

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 344,250 (451,150) (106,900)

LOSS BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (1,098,734) (972,811) (2,071,545)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from developers 48,048 - 48,048

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (1,050,686) (972,811) (2,023,497)

NET ASSETS - JANUARY 1, 2009 25,833,588 21,587,345 47,420,933

NET ASSETS - DECEMBER 31, 2009 $ 24,782,902 $ 20,614,534 $ 45,397,436

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Business - Type Activities

Water Division Power Division Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers $ 4,157,626 $ 12,377,380 $ 16,535,006
Cash paid to suppliers (1,899,010) (6,886,685) (8,785,695)
Cash paid to employees (2,895,850) (2,412,331) (5,308,181)

NET CASH (USED FOR) PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (637,234) 3,078,364 2,441,130

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Property taxes 530,919 - 530,919
Transfers to other funds 115,908 (115,908) -
Other nonoperating revenue 4 - 4

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 646,831 (115,908) 530,923

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

System capacity charges 28,490 - 28,490
Acquisition of capital assets (346,650) (652,687) (999,337)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2,927 - 2,927
Proceeds from issuance of debt - 635,236 635,236
Principal payments on debt (787,113) (4,119,000) (4,906,113)
Change in loans receivable - 2,762 2,762
Interest paid (244,324) (431,624) (675,948)
Trustee/brokerage expense - (103,877) (103,877)

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,346,670) (4,669,190) (6,015,860)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest and dividends 48,317 1,384 49,701

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 48,317 1,384 49,701

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,288,756) (1,705,350) (2,994,106)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JANUARY 1, 2009 3,321,283 5,761,644 9,082,927

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2009 $ 2,032,527 $ 4,056,294 $ 6,088,821

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Business - Type Activities

Water Division Power Division Totals

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating loss $ (1,442,984) $ (521,661) $ (1,964,645)

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING LOSS TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Depreciation and amortization 813,149 2,951,653 3,764,802
Decrease (increase) in receivables (29,376) 1,714,128 1,684,752
Decrease (increase) in inventories 8,968 169,156 178,124
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses (16,192) 2,114 (14,078)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (228,495) (2,947,618) (3,176,113)
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries and wages (96,961) (68,455) (165,416)
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 30,207 10,748 40,955
Increase (decrease) in other payables (15,525) 3,121 (12,404)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue - 1,570,233 1,570,233
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 339,975 194,945 534,920

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES $ (637,234) $ 3,078,364 $ 2,441,130

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE

Non-cash items
Developer Contributions $ 48,048 $ - $ 48,048

Interest paid $ 233,792 $ 348,657 $ 582,449

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2008

Business -Type Activities

Water Division Power Division Totals

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 2,367,786 $ 3,665,497 $ 6,033,283
Cash with fiscal agents (Note 2) - 405,344 405,344
Accounts receivable 517,403 1,714,128 2,231,531
Accrued interest receivable 13,809 - 13,809
Property taxes receivable 266,597 - 266,597
Inventory 141,116 806,814 947,930
Prepaid expenses 52,657 49,101 101,758
Loans receivable (Note 3) 10,655 2,762 13,417
Due from other funds (Note 4) 120,765 1,736 122,501

Total Current Assets 3,490,788 6,645,382 10,136,170

Restricted Assets

Cash with fiscal agents (Note 2) 953,497 1,690,803 2,644,300

Total Restricted Assets 953,497 1,690,803 2,644,300

Capital Assets (Note 5)

Capital assets 45,213,435 91,289,738 136,503,173
Less: accumulated depreciation (17,489,397) (69,335,899) (86,825,296)

Total Capital Assets, net 27,724,038 21,953,839 49,677,877

Other Assets

Bond discounts, net of accumulated amortization of
$751,274 (Note 8) 111,599 - 111,599

Total Other Assets 111,599 - 111,599

TOTAL ASSETS $ 32,279,922 $ 30,290,024 $ 62,569,946

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2008

Business - Type Activities

Water Division Power Division Totals

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 299,847 $ 3,214,019 $ 3,513,866
Salaries and wages payable 133,912 96,705 230,617
Bond/COP interest payable 64,434 - 64,434
Customer deposits 53,398 - 53,398
Contractor bond payable 77,098 - 77,098
Payroll taxes payable 13,233 12,271 25,504
Net OPEB Obligation  (Note 14) 336,668 203,154 539,822
Other payables 5,897 21 5,918
Accrued bond interest payable - 94,676 94,676
Due to other funds (Note 4) 1,736 120,765 122,501
Current portion of compensated absences (Note 9) 10,995 36,400 47,395
Current portion of long-term liabilities (Note 8) 787,113 4,097,000 4,884,113

Total Current Liabilities 1,784,331 7,875,011 9,659,342

Long-Term Liabilities

Compensated absences (Note 9) 375,179 273,668 648,847
Long-term liabilities (Note 8) 4,286,824 554,000 4,840,824

Long-Term Liabilities 4,662,003 827,668 5,489,671

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,446,334 8,702,679 15,149,013

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 22,650,101 17,302,839 39,952,940
Restricted for debt service 953,497 2,096,147 3,049,644
Unrestricted (Note 10) 2,229,990 2,188,359 4,418,349

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 25,833,588 $ 21,587,345 $ 47,420,933

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Business - Type Activities

Water Division Power Division Totals

OPERATING REVENUE

Domestic water sales $ 2,580,749 $ - $ 2,580,749
Irrigation water sales 252,038 - 252,038
Sale of electricity 870,671 14,804,916 15,675,587
Other services 2,274,677 4,535 2,279,212

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 5,978,135 14,809,451 20,787,586

OPERATING EXPENSES

Source of supply 13,757 - 13,757
Water treatment 502,705 - 502,705
Transmission and distribution 943,585 - 943,585
Customer accounts 343,434 - 343,434
Plant operations 356,925 2,391,304 2,748,229
Routine and nonroutine maintenance - 2,034,106 2,034,106
General and administrative 2,537,535 1,439,100 3,976,635
Other operating expenses 186,353 - 186,353

Less: expense credits (300,205) - (300,205)
Depreciation 805,100 2,839,216 3,644,316
Amortization 22,588 88,308 110,896

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 5,411,777 8,792,034 14,203,811

NET OPERATING INCOME 566,358 6,017,417 6,583,775

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

System capacity charges 237,759 - 237,759
Interest and penalty income 71,264 12,081 83,345
Property taxes 529,166 - 529,166
ERAF surcharge (4) - (4)
Gain (loss) on sale and disposition of capital assets (6,197) 2,425 (3,772)
Other non-operating revenue 124,654 - 124,654
Interest expense (285,406) (487,452) (772,858)
Trustee expense - (64,411) (64,411)
Brokerage expense (1,875) - (1,875)

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 669,361 (537,357) 132,004

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,235,719 5,480,060 6,715,779

NET ASSETS - JANUARY 1, 2008 24,597,869 16,107,285 40,705,154

NET ASSETS -  DECEMBER 31, 2008 $ 25,833,588 $ 21,587,345 $ 47,420,933

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Business - Type Activities

Water Division Power Division Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers $ 5,599,303 $ 12,348,364 $ 17,947,667
Cash paid to suppliers (632,045) (1,089,482) (1,721,527)
Cash paid to employees (3,434,741) (1,771,999) (5,206,740)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,532,517 9,486,883 11,019,400

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Property taxes 518,963 - 518,963
Transfers to other funds (169,970) 169,970 -
Other nonoperating revenue 125,440 - 125,440

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 474,433 169,970 644,403

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

System capacity charges 237,759 - 237,759
Acquisition of capital assets (438,596) (4,160,582) (4,599,178)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 23,769 2,425 26,194
Principal payments in debt (746,536) (3,954,000) (4,700,536)
Change in loans receivable 5,671 1,010 6,681
Interest expense (302,626) (566,166) (868,792)
Trustee expense - (64,411) (64,411)

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,220,559) (8,741,724) (9,962,283)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment income 73,525 12,081 85,606

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 73,525 12,081 85,606

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 859,916 927,210 1,787,126

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JANUARY 1, 2008 2,461,367 4,834,434 7,295,801

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2008 $ 3,321,283 $ 5,761,644 $ 9,082,927

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Business - Type Activities

Water Division Power Division Totals

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income $ 566,358 $ 6,017,417 $ 6,583,775

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Depreciation and amortization 827,688 2,927,524 3,755,212
Other post-employment benefit pension expense 392,684 223,686 616,370
Decrease (increase) in receivables (154,802) (1,714,128) (1,868,930)
Decrease (increase) in inventories (2,219) (25,550) (27,769)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 1,622 2,600 4,222
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 109,560 2,778,843 2,888,403
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries and wages 32,280 26,249 58,529
Increase (decrease) in payroll taxes payable 5,924 3,169 9,093
Increase (decrease) in other payables (23,978) (5,968) (29,946)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue (222,600) (746,959) (969,559)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,532,517 $ 9,486,883 $ 11,019,400

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE

Interest paid $ 285,406 $ 487,452 $ 772,858

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The South Feather Water & Power Agency (formerly known as Oroville-Wyandotte Irrigation District) was formed
November 18, 1919, under Irrigation District Law, Division II, of the California Water Code. The Agency provides
domestic and irrigation water, and generates electrical power that is sold to the Pacific Gas & Electric Company.

Oroville-Wyandotte Irrigation Financing Corporation

In April, 1995, the Agency approved the formation of the Oroville-Wyandotte Irrigation District Financing Corporation
(the Corporation). This corporation is a nonprofit public benefit corporation and is organized under the Nonprofit
Public Benefit Corporation Law (commencing at Section 5110 of the California Corporations Code). The purpose of
the Corporation is to provide assistance to public agencies in the State of California, in the financing of, or acquiring,
constructing, rehabilitating or financing various public facilities, land and equipment for the use, benefit and
enjoyment of the public. 

Although the Agency and Corporation are legally separate entities, the Agency exercises oversight responsibility
over the Corporation. The following criteria were used in determining that the Agency exercises oversight: 

1) The five (5) members of the Board of Directors also act as the governing body of the Corporation. 

2) The Corporation is managed by employees of the Agency. 

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, there was no activity or net assets in the Corporation. 

B. Basis of Presentation

South Feather Water & Power Agency's basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board is the
acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards followed by
governmental entities in the U.S.A.

These standards require that the financial statements described below be presented.

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The Statement of Net Assets displays information about the reporting government as a whole. It include the activities
of the overall Agency. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. The
Agency's net assets are reported in three parts - invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets;
and unrestricted net assets. The Agency first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. Business-
type activities are generally financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. 

The Agency is comprised of two proprietary funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and expenses. An emphasis is placed
on major funds within proprietary categories with each major fund displayed in a separate column. A fund is
considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the Agency or meets the following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund
are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or enterprise
fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

Both of the Agency's funds are considered to be major funds. 
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Measurement Focus

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, are presented
using the economic resources measurement focus as defined below.

All proprietary funds utilize an "economic resources" measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this
measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial
position, and cash flows. All assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with the operation of
these funds are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net assets.

Basis of Accounting

In the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, business-like
activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or the economic asset used.
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions
are recognized when the exchange takes place.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual include taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest and charges for services.

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met. Under the terms of
grant agreements, the Agency may fund certain programs with a combination of cost-reimbursement grants,
categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available to
finance program expenses. The Agency's policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs,
followed by general revenues if necessary.

The Agency follows Statements and Interpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board and its
predecessors that were issued on or before November 30, 1989, in accounting for its business-type activities, which
do not conflict with Government Accounting Standards Board Pronouncements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal operations. The principal operating revenues of the water and power enterprise funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources
are available for use, it is the Agency's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are needed. 

D. Cash and Investments

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Agency’s cash and cash equivalents include restricted and
unrestricted cash on hand or on deposit, and demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of
three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

The Agency has adopted a formal investment policy as required by Section 53600et seq., of the California
Government Code. The Agency Treasurer has responsibility for selecting depositories and investing idle funds in
accordance with the adopted investment policy. See Note 2 for additional information on the Agency’s cash and
investments.
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments for the Agency are reported at fair value. The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is a special fund of
the California State Treasury through which local governments may pool investments. The Agency may invest up to
$40,000,000 in the fund. Investments in LAIF are highly liquid as deposits can be converted to cash within 24 hours
without loss of interest. Funds deposited in LAIF are invested in accordance with Government Code Sections 16430
and 16480. Oversight of LAIF is provided by the Pooled Money Investment Board whose members are the California
State Treasurer, California Director of Financial and the California State Controller. For the purpose of these financial
statements, the fair value of amounts in LAIF is equivalent to dollars held. 

E. Receivables and Payables

Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Receivables are recorded in the
financial statements net of any allowance for doubtful accounts if applicable, and estimated refunds due. Business-
type activities report utilities and interest earnings as their major receivables. Activities between funds that are
representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to either “due
to/from other funds” (i.e. the current portion of the interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the non-
current portion of the interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from
other funds.”

The Agency utilizes the allowance method with respect to its accounts receivable. Delinquent water charges are
submitted to the County Tax Assessor annually to be encumbered on the secured property tax bills. Therefore, no
allowance was deemed necessary at December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Property Tax

Property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which the tax and assessment is levied. The County of Butte
levies, bills and collects property taxes and special assessments for the Agency. Under the County's "Teeter Plan",
the County remits the entire amount levied and handles all delinquencies, retaining interest and penalties.

The term "unsecured" refers to taxes on personal property other than real estate, land and buildings. These taxes
are secured by liens on the property being taxed. Property tax revenues are recognized by the Agency in the fiscal
year they are assessed.

The County of Butte assesses properties, bills for, collects, and distributes property taxes for the Agency per the
following schedule:

Secured Unsecured

Valuation dates March 1 March 1

Lien/levy dates July 1 July 1

Due dates 50% on November 1
50% of February 1

July 1

Delinquent as of December 10, April 10 August 31

F. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at average cost using the first-in, first out method.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items
in the financial statements. 
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Restricted Assets

Certain resources set aside for repayments of debt and capital projects are classified as restricted assets on the
Statement of Net Assets as their use is limited by applicable covenants and specific requirements.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable
business-type activities columns in the financial statements. Capital assets are currently defined by the Agency as
assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital
assets are valued at historical cost. Contributed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
contributed. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized.

Interest is capitalized on assets acquired with debt. The amount of interest to be capitalized is offset by interest
earned in invested debt proceeds over the construction period. 

Depreciation is provided over the useful lives of assets using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives of all
depreciable assets are as follows:

Dams, powerhouses and treatment plant 40 – 50 years
Pipelines 50 years
Other Water Division assets 3 – 10 years
Other Power Division assets 5 – 50 years

I. Compensated Absences

Employees of the Agency can accumulate sick leave at the rate of 1 day for each calendar month worked. Upon
retirement or separation, the Agency shall pay to any employee, one-half of unused sick leave. Vacation, which is
based upon the employee’s length of service, may be accumulated up to a maximum of forty (40) days. The Agency
has accrued a liability for compensated absences that meets the following criteria:

1) The Agency’s obligations relating to employees’ rights to receive compensation for future absences is
attributed to employees’ service already rendered.

2) The obligation related to rights that vest or accumulate. 
3) Payment of the compensation is probable.
4) The amounts can be reasonably estimated. 

The total liability for the Agency for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $737,197 and $696,242
respectively, of which $49,000 was current.

J. Long-Term Liabilities

In the Statement of Net Assets, long-term liabilities, and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable proprietary fund type. Initial issue bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. The difference between the reacquisition
price of refunding bonds and the net carrying amount of refunded debt (deferred amount on refunding) is amortized
over the shorter of the lives of the refunding debt or remaining life of the refunded debt. Bond issuance costs,
including deferred refunding amounts and underwriters' discounts, are reported as deferred bond issuance costs.
Amortization of bond premiums or discounts, issuance costs, and deferred amounts on refunding is included in
interest expense. 
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

K. Interfund Transactions

Following is a description of the three basic types of interfund transactions and the related accounting policies:

1. Interfund services provided and used - transactions for services rendered or facilities provided. These
transactions are recorded as revenues in the receiving fund and expenditures in the disbursing fund.

2. Reimbursements (expenditure transfers) - transactions to reimburse a fund for specific expenditures incurred
for the benefit of another fund. These transactions are recorded as expenditures in the disbursing fund and a
reduction of expenditures in the receiving fund.

3. Operating transfers - all other interfund transactions which allocate resources from one fund to another fund.
These transactions are recorded as operating transfers in and out.

Transactions between funds of the Agency are recorded as interfund transfers. The unpaid balances at year end, as
a result of such transactions, are shown as due to and due from other funds on the balance sheet of the Statement
of Net Assets.

L. Contributed Capital

Contributed capital transactions are recorded as capital contributions in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets and are the result of water system property and facilities contributed to the Agency.

M. Net Assets

The net assets amount is the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt are capital assets, less accumulated depreciation and any outstanding debt related to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are legal limitations
imposed on their use by the Agency or external restrictions by other governments, creditors or grantors. 

N. Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
reporting date and revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

O. Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform
with the presentation in the current-year financial statements.

NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents were reported in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

December 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,406,456 $ 6,033,283
Cash with fiscal agents 68,379 405,344
Restricted cash with fiscal agents 3,613,986 2,644,300

Total $ 6,088,821 $ 9,082,927
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NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents were comprised of the following:

December 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

Cash on hand $ 950 $ 950
Deposits with financial institutions 825,868 3,813,747
Certificates of deposit 503,904 -
Money market funds 3,682,365 3,049,644
Local Agency Investment Fund 1,075,734 2,218,586

Total $ 6,088,821 $ 9,082,927

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the Agency’s investment policy:

Authorized Investment Type Maximum Maturity
Maximum Total of

Portfolio

Maximum
Investment in One

Issuer

Bonds issued by the Agency None No Limit None
U.S. Treasury Obligations None No Limit None
State of California Obligations None No Limit None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A No Limit None
Banker's Acceptances 270 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper - U.S. Companies 180 days 15% None
Certificates of Deposit None 30% None
Repurchase Agreements None Per Government

Code
Per Government
Code

Medium Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 15% None
Other Investments as permitted by the

California Government Code N/A
Per Government
Code

Per Government
Code

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements:

Investments held by the bond/COP fiscal agents (trustees) are governed by the provisions of the various debt
indenture agreements rather than the general provisions of the Agency’s investments policy or the California
Government Code. 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk in the market rate changes that could adversely affect the fair values of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. One of the ways that the Agency manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a
combination of shorter and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the
portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity
needed for Agency operations. 

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Agency had no investments other than their investment in the State
Investment Pool. The fair value of the Agency's investments in this pool is classified as a cash equivalent. 
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Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk:

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of an
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Agency’s investments were in compliance with the rating required by the
Agency’s investment policy. 

Concentration of Credit Risk:

The investment policy of the Agency contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer
beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 there were no
investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds and external investment pools) that
represented 5% or more of the total Agency investments.

Custodial Credit Risk:

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depositary financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counter-party (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and
the Agency’s investments policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure of custodial
risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state and local governmental units by pledging securities
in an undivided collateral pool held by a depositary regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental
unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must be equal to least 100% of the total
amount deposited by public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District deposits by
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the deposits with financial institutions, in excess of the federal depositary
insurance limits, were collateralized as required by law. As of December 31, 2009, the carrying amount of the
Agency’s bank deposits totaled $825,868 and the bank balances totaled $1,428,667. As of December 31, 2008, the
carrying amount of the Agency’s deposits was $3,813,747 and the bank balances totaled $1,095,324. The
differences between the carrying amounts and the bank totals are due to the normal deposits in transit and
outstanding checks. Of the December 31, 2009 bank balances, $1,003,904 was covered by federal depositary
insurances. Of the December 31, 2008 bank balances, $500,000 was covered by federal depositary insurances. 

Investment in State Investment Pool:

The Agency is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the California
Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the Agency’s
investments in this pool is classified as a cash equivalent in the accompanying financial statements. 

NOTE 3: LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Agency has a computer acquisition program, where the Agency purchases a computer for an employee and is
then repaid through payroll deductions from the employee's pay. 

The following is a summary of loans receivable for the year ended December 31, 2009:

January 1,
2009 Additions Deletions

December 31,
2009

Employee computer loans $ 13,417 $ - $ (8,260) $ 5,157
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The following is a summary of loans receivable for the year ended December 31, 2008:

January 1,
2008 Additions Deletions

December 31,
2008

Employee computer loans $ 20,098 $ 8,023 $ (14,704) $ 13,417

NOTE 4: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The composition of interfund balances, as of December 31, 2009, was as follows:

Fund
Interfund

Receivable
Interfund
Payable

Water $ 3,265 $ 144
Power 144 3,265

Totals $ 3,409 $ 3,409

The composition of interfund balances, as of December 31, 2008 was as follows:

Fund
Interfund

Receivable
Interfund
Payable

Water $ 120,765 $ 1,736
Power 1,736 120,765

Totals $ 122,501 $ 122,501
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:

January 1,
2009 Additions Deletions Transfers

December 31,
2009

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land, land rights and water rights $ 1,313,757 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,313,757
Construction in progress 1,248,595 580,481 (2,861) (1,051,334) 774,881
FERC relicensing in progress 5,425,924 157,896 - - 5,583,820

Total capital assets not being
depreciated 7,988,276 738,377 (2,861) (1,051,334) 7,672,458

Capital assets being depreciated
Source of supply 83,333,984 - - - 83,333,984
Pumping plant 362,297 - - - 362,297
Miners Ranch Treatment Plant,

treatment and transmission and
distribution facilities 31,841,211 113,212 (13,115) 77,895 32,019,203

General plant and yard 9,761,874 195,796 (35,302) 973,439 10,895,807
Tail water depression system 124,445 - - - 124,445
Photovoltaic system 2,142,701 - - - 2,142,701
Recreational facilities 948,385 - - - 948,385

Total capital assets being
depreciated 128,514,897 309,008 (48,417) 1,051,334 129,826,822

Less: accumulated depreciation
Source of supply (65,063,494) (2,532,528) - - (67,596,022)
Pumping plant (282,519) (4,255) - - (286,774)
Miners Ranch Treatment Plant,

treatment and transmission and
distribution facilities (14,086,799) (640,714) 8,625 - (14,718,888)

General plant and yard (6,420,632) (492,562) 35,302 - (6,877,892)
Tail water depression system (124,445) - - - (124,445)
Photovoltaic system (244,022) (53,568) - - (297,590)
Recreational facilities (603,385) (32,262) - - (635,647)

Total accumulated
depreciation (86,825,296) (3,755,889) 43,927 - (90,537,258)

Capital Assets, net $ 49,677,877 $ (2,708,504) $ (7,351) $ - $ 46,962,022

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 was charged to the Agency as follows:

Water $ 804,236
Power 2,951,653

Total $ 3,755,889
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Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows:

January 1,
2008 Additions Deletions Transfers

December 31,
2008

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land, land rights and water rights $ 1,313,757 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,313,757
Construction in progress 49,212 1,246,123 - (46,740) 1,248,595
FERC relicensing in progress 5,179,563 246,361 - - 5,425,924

Total capital assets not being
depreciated 6,542,532 1,492,484 - (46,740) 7,988,276

Capital assets being depreciated
Source of supply 80,470,451 2,863,533 - - 83,333,984
Pumping plant 362,297 - - - 362,297
Miners Ranch Treatment Plant,

treatment and transmission and
distribution facilities 31,808,370 - - 32,841 31,841,211

General plant and yard 9,652,081 204,239 (108,345) 13,899 9,761,874
Tail water depression system 124,445 - - - 124,445
Photovoltaic system 2,142,701 - - - 2,142,701
Recreational facilities 909,463 38,922 - - 948,385

Total capital assets being
depreciated 125,469,808 3,106,694 (108,345) 46,740 128,514,897

Less: accumulated depreciation
Source of supply (62,552,892) (2,510,602) - - (65,063,494)
Pumping plant (278,264) (4,255) - - (282,519)
Miners Ranch Treatment Plant,

treatment and transmission and
distribution facilities (13,446,577) (640,222) - - (14,086,799)

General plant and yard (6,093,691) (404,950) 78,009 - (6,420,632)
Tail water depression system (124,445) - - - (124,445)
Photovoltaic system (190,456) (53,566) - - (244,022)
Recreational facilities (572,664) (30,721) - - (603,385)

Total accumulated
depreciation (83,258,989) (3,644,316) 78,009 - (86,825,296)

Capital Assets, net $ 48,753,351 $ 954,862 $ (30,336) $ - $ 49,677,877

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2008 was charged to the Agency as follows:

Water $ 805,100
Power 2,839,216

Total $ 3,644,316

31



SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

NOTE 6: DEFERRED REVENUE

The Agency has reported deferred revenue on its Statements of Net Assets. Deferred revenue arises when potential
revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred
revenue also arises when resources are received by the Agency before it has a legal claim to them. In subsequent
periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the Agency has a legal claim to the resources, the
liability for deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized. 

As of December 31, 2009, the total amount of deferred revenue for the Agency was $1,570,233. The Agency did not
have a deferred revenue balance as of December 31, 2008.

NOTE 7: LOAN PAYABLE

In February 2010, the Agency entered into a cost-sharing agreement with PG&E for funding of the Sly Creek Dam
Crest Modification Project and the Lost Creek Dam Crest Modification Project.  The agreement states that the
Agency shall reimburse PG&E 60% of final project costs incurred from January 1, 2009, plus simple interest that
accrues monthly at a rate equal to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate.  All amounts due to PG&E from the Agency
are due and payable by July 31, 2015. As of December 31, 2009, Sly Creek Dam project costs totaled $635,236,
and the Lost Creek Dam Crest Modification Project had not yet commenced. 

NOTE 8: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2009:

January 1,
2009 Additions Deletions

December 31,
2009

Portion due
within one

year

Water Division

1980 Miners Ranch domestic
revenue bonds $ 1,580,000 $ - $ (100,000) $ 1,480,000 $ 105,000

1995 certificates of participation 675,000 - (675,000) - -
2003 certificates of participation 2,685,000 - - 2,685,000 125,000
Economic Development

Administration Loan 133,937 - (12,113) 121,824 12,719

Total Water Division Long-Term
Liabilities 5,073,937 - (787,113) 4,286,824 242,719

Power Division

1960 South Fork revenue bonds 3,486,000 - (2,954,000) 532,000 532,000
2004 Sly Creek revenue bonds 1,165,000 - (1,165,000) - -

Total Power Division Long-
Term Liabilities 4,651,000 - (4,119,000) 532,000 532,000

Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 9,724,937 $ - $ (4,906,113) $ 4,818,824 $ 774,719
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The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2008:

January 1,
2008 Additions Deletions

December 31,
2008

Portion due
within one

year

Water Division

1980 Miners Ranch domestic
revenue bonds $ 1,675,000 $ - $ (95,000) $ 1,580,000 $ 100,000

1995 certificates of participation 1,315,000 - (640,000) 675,000 675,000
2003 certificates of participation 2,685,000 - - 2,685,000 -
Economic Development

Administration Loan 145,473 - (11,536) 133,937 12,113

Total Water Division Long-Term
Liabilities 5,820,473 - (746,536) 5,073,937 787,113

Power Division

1960 South Fork revenue bonds 6,325,000 - (2,839,000) 3,486,000 2,932,000
2004 Sly Creek revenue bonds 2,280,000 - (1,115,000) 1,165,000 1,165,000

Total Power Division Long-
Term Liabilities 8,605,000 - (3,954,000) 4,651,000 4,097,000

Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 14,425,473 $ - $ (4,700,536) $ 9,724,937 $ 4,884,113

A description of the long-term liabilities related to the Water Division follows:

Revenue Bonds:

1980 Miners Ranch domestic revenue bonds

In 1980 the Agency issued $3,500,000 in serial bonds payable in annual installments of $30,000 to $180,000
through October 1, 2020. Originally purchased by the Farmers Home Administration, the bonds were sold to General
Electric Credit Corporation in 1987. On November 15, 1997, this obligation was transferred from General Electric
Credit Corporation to GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corporation. Interest is paid semi-annually on October 1 and
April 1 at 5%. The bonds were issued to finance the construction of the Miners Ranch Water Treatment Plant. 

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements to maturity for the 1980 Miners Ranch domestic revenue
bonds as of December 31, 2009:

Year ended
December 31, Principal Interest Totals

2010 $ 105,000 $ 74,000 $ 179,000
2011 110,000 68,750 178,750
2012 115,000 63,250 178,250
2013 120,000 57,500 177,500
2014 125,000 51,500 176,500

2015- 2019 735,000 156,000 891,000
Thereafter 170,000 8,500 178,500

Totals $ 1,480,000 $ 479,500 $ 1,959,500
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Installment Payment Agreements:

1995 Certificates of Participation

The Agency and the Corporation entered into an Installment Payment Agreement, dated May 1, 1995, where the
Corporation issued $6,865,000 in revenue certificates of participation for the purpose of assisting in the financing of
certain capital improvements to the water and irrigation system on behalf of the Agency. The Agency is solely
responsible for servicing the debt service payments. The certificates evidence the direct, undivided, proportionate
interest of the owners thereof in installment payments to be paid by the Agency pursuant to the installment payment
agreement. The Corporation’s rights to receive installment payments and to exercise remedies upon an event default
under the installment purchase agreements have been assigned to the trustee for the benefit of the certificate
owners. 

The note consisted of $6,865,000 of term certificates payable in annual installments of $295,000 to $675,000, due
April 1, 2009. Certificates and interest were payable from net revenues of the water system. Interest was payable on
April 1, and October 1, with rates varying from 4.6% to 5.50%. Proceeds from this financing were used to upgrade
the water distribution system.  As of December 31, 2009, the Agency paid off this certificate of participation. 

2003 Certificates of Participation

On October 1, 2003, the Agency and the Corporation entered into another Installment Payment Agreement. Under
this agreement, the Corporation issued $2,685,000 in revenue certificates of participation for the purpose of assisting
in the financing of the purchase of a solar photovoltaic electricity generation system at the Miner’s Ranch Water
Treatment Plant and to fund certain improvements to the Agency’s administration building. The Agency is solely
responsible for servicing the debt service payments. 

This debt consists of $2,685,000 in term certificates payable in annual installments of approximately $260,000.
Certificates and interest are payable from net revenues of the water system. Interest is payable on April 1 and
October 1, with rates varying from 4.75% to 5.375%. 

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements to maturity for the 2003 Certificates of Participation as of
December 31, 2009:

Year ended
December 31, Principal Interest Totals

2010 $ 125,000 $ 137,100 $ 262,100
2011 130,000 131,044 261,044
2012 135,000 124,750 259,750
2013 140,000 118,219 258,219
2014 150,000 111,331 261,331

2015 - 2019 875,000 426,639 1,301,639
2020 - 2024 1,130,000 157,755 1,287,755

Totals $ 2,685,000 $ 1,206,838 $ 3,891,838
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Long-Term Contract:

Economic Development Administration Loan

This loan of $320,000 is due in annual principal and interest installments of $18,805 and over a term of 40 years.
The loan, plus an $80,000 grant, were used to finance water system improvements. The annual interest rate is 5%. 

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements to maturity for the Economic Development Administration
Loan as of December 31, 2009:

Year ended
December 31, Principal Interest Totals

2010 $ 12,719 $ 6,086 $ 18,805
2011 13,354 5,450 18,804
2012 14,021 4,783 18,804
2013 14,722 4,082 18,804
2014 15,458 3,346 18,804

2015 - 2019 51,550 4,863 56,413

Totals $ 121,824 $ 28,610 $ 150,434

A description of the long-term liabilities related to the Power Division follows:

1960 South Fork Power Revenue Bonds

In 1960 the Agency issued $62,000,000 in debt consisting of serial bonds of $14,135,000 paid through July 1, 1985
and term bonds of $47,865,000 payable through July 1, 2010. Bonds and related interest are extinguished by semi-
annual payments of approximately $1,564,000 received from the Pacific Gas and Electric Company under the South
Fork Project Agreement dated June 15, 1960. Interest is payable January 1 and July 1 at rates 4.25% through 6%.
As of December 31, 2009, the Agency's remaining obligation due 2010 is $532,000 in principal payments, $11,773 in
interest payments, for a total debt service requirement of $543,773.

2004 Sly Creek Revenue Bonds

During 2004, the 1993 Sly Creek bonds were refinanced with the issuance of the 2004 Sly Creek Power Project
Hydroelectric Revenue bonds. A deferred loss of $52,400 resulted from this refinancing. The 1993 and 2004
refunded losses were combined and are being amortized, using the straight line method, over the remaining life of
the 2004 debt. The unamortized loss remaining at December 31, 2009 and 2008, is reported as an asset in the
Statement of Net Assets. 

The results of the refunding include the issuance of $5,275,000 2004 A Hydroelectric Refunding Revenue Bonds
dated April 1, 2004. These refunding bonds are term bonds payable in annual installments of $905,000 to
$1,165,000, due January 1, 2009. Bonds and related interest are extinguished by semi-annual payments from
Pacific Gas and Electric Company pursuant to a contract dated September 20, 1992. Interest is payable on January
1 and July 1 with interest rates ranging from 2.125% to 3.625%.

The refunding also includes the issuance of $160,000 2004 B Hydroelectric Refunding Revenue Bonds dated April 1,
2004. These refunding bonds are considered taxable bonds and were due and payable, in full, on January 1, 2005.
The Agency purchased these bonds as an investment. Interest was payable on maturity with a rate of 2.50%. As of
December 31, 2009, the Agency paid off this bond.
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Compliance:

There are a number of limitations and restrictions in the various bond indentures, certificates of participation, bond
resolutions, and loan agreements. 

The 1980 Domestic Revenue Bonds, Miners Ranch Treatment Plant, the 1995 Oroville-Wyandotte Irrigation
District Financing Corporation Revenue Certificates of Participation and the 2003 Oroville-Wyandotte
Irrigation District Financing Corporation Revenue Certificates of Participation require that the Agency's net
revenues for the Water Division equal or exceed 125% of the annual debt service requirements (principal
and interest) for these debt obligations. As of December 31, 2009, the Agency's net revenues were below
the 125% coverage requirement.  However, more than adequate funds were available to pay all debt
service obligations with net assets carried over from prior years and current revenues.  Revenues received
in 2010 and anticipated future power revenues will enable the Agency to equal or exceed the 125% annual
debt service net revenue calculation in future years.  As of December 31, 2008, the Agency's Water
Division net revenues represented 208% of the 2008 annual debt service requirements. 

Bond Discounts:

Capitalized bond costs related to the above issuances have been recorded as bond discounts, net of accumulated
amortization in the amount of $102,686 as of December 31, 2009 and $111,599 as of December 31, 2008. The
balance is amortized using the straight line method over the bond terms which range from 3 to 20 years.
Amortization expense for bond costs for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 totaled $8,913 and
$110,896, respectively. 

NOTE 9: COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The following is a summary of the Agency's compensated absences for the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2008:

January 1,
2009 Additions Deletions

December 31,
2009

Portion due
within one

year

Water Division $ 386,174 $ 51,634 $ (21,427) $ 416,381 $ 21,000

Power Division 310,068 39,422 (28,674) 320,816 28,000

Total Compensated Absences $ 696,242 $ 91,056 $ (50,101) $ 737,197 $ 49,000

January 1,
2008 Additions Deletions

December 31,
2008

Portion due
within one

year

Water Division $ 330,158 $ 86,530 $ (30,514) $ 386,174 $ 10,995

Power Division 289,536 26,901 (6,369) 310,068 36,400

Total Compensated Absences $ 619,694 $ 113,431 $ (36,883) $ 696,242 $ 47,395
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NOTE 10: DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Management of the Agency has designated a portion of their unrestricted net assets as follows for the years
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

2009 2008

System capacity fees $ 1,666,977 $ 1,667,205
Undesignated (1,459,868) 2,751,144

Total Unrestricted Net Assets $ 207,109 $ 4,418,349

NOTE 11: DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Agency offered its employees deferred compensation plans in accordance with Internal Revenue Section Code
457. The plans, available to all Agency employees, permitted them to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Participation in a deferred compensation plan is voluntary on the part of the employee. Amounts credited to deferred
compensation were deposited in savings or other type of investment accounts with Washington Mutual Bank’s
Nationwide, ICMA Retirement Corporation, Hartford Life Insurance Company, Lincoln Financial Group, and
CalPERS. 

Prior to June 30, 2008, the Agency contributed ten percent of the employees’ salary, excluding overtime and
bonuses, to each employees’ deferred compensation plan. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Agency
made contributions of $212,891 to the deferred compensation plans. The deferred compensation is not available to
the employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseen emergency. 

After June 30, 2008, the Agency ended its contributions to employee deferred compensation plans and enrolled
employees into the State of California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) defined benefit retirement
program (see note 13).

NOTE 12: DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN

From January 1, 1996 to June 30, 2008, The Agency elected to sponsor a defined contribution retirement plan. The
plan covered all eligible full-time employees of the Agency with at least 30 days of credited service. The main
objective of this plan was to diversify the investment portfolio in an effort to provide funds for retirement and funds for
beneficiaries in the event of death. There are no minimum vesting requirements for this plan. Employees
participating in this plan and/or deferred compensation plans (Note 11) received a contribution from the Agency. This
contribution amounted to 10% of the employees’ salary, excluding, overtime and bonuses. Employees could
participate in both plans; however, the Agency only contributed to one plan. Employees are not required to contribute
to this plan. Amounts credited to the plan were deposited in savings or other type of investments accounts with ICMA
Retirement Corporation, Hartford Life Insurance Company, and Lincoln Financial Group. The defined contribution
retirement plan is not available to the employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseen emergency. 

2008

Total payroll $ 2,126,716
Covered payroll $ 2,126,716
Agency contributions $ 212,891
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %10

After June 30, 2008, the Agency ended its contributions to employee deferred compensation plans and the defined
contribution retirement plan and enrolled employees into the State of California Public Employees Retirement
System (CalPERS) defined benefit retirement program (see note 13).
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NOTE 13: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

Beginning in June 2008, the Agency participated in the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS),
an agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to members and beneficiaries. CalPERS
acts as a common investment and administrative agent for the participating public entities within the State of
California. Copies of CalPERS' annual financial report may be obtained from their executive office: 400 P Street,
Sacramento, CA 95814.

Funding Policy

Participants are required to contribute 8 percent of their annual covered salary. The Agency is required to contribute
an actuarially determined rate calculated as a percentage of covered payroll. The employer contribution rate for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 was 11.42 percent and was based on a lump sum prepayment to CalPERS for
miscellaneous employees. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute and
Agency contracts with employee bargaining groups.

Annual Pension Cost

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, the Agency's annual pension cost (employer contribution) totaled
$510,239. The Agency's required contribution for miscellaneous employees was $431,914. The required contribution
was determined as part of the June 30, 2008, new agency actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial
cost method. The Agency anticipates funding the required contribution as of June 30, 2009, resulting in no net
pension obligation. 

The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b)
projected annual salary increases that vary by duration of service, and (c) 3.25 percent per year cost-of-living
adjustments. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.0 percent. The actuarial value of PERS assets
was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments
over a four-year period (smoothed market value). The CalPERS unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. CalPERS has combined the prior service
unfunded liability and current service unfunded liability into a single initial unfunded liability.

Three Year Trend Information for CalPERS

Fiscal Year

Annual Pension Cost
(APC) as of

December 31, 2009*
Percentage of APC

Contributed Net Pension Obligation

2007 $ - 100% -
2008 $ 213,533 100% -
2009 $ 510,239 100% -

* The Agency entered into the defined benefit plan as of June 2008. Therefore, information is not available prior to
2008. In addition, the actuarial valuation performed by CalPERS is as of the fiscal year ending in June. As noted
above, the Agency intends to pay the required pension contribution. As of December 31, 2009, no net pension
obligation has been determined. 

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2008, the most recent valuation date, is as follows:

Schedule of Funding Progress for CalPERS
(Risk Pool as a Whole)

Actuarial
Valuation

 Date
Normal Accrued

Liability
Actuarial Value of

Assets 

Liability
(Excess
Assets) 

Funded
 Status

Annual
Covered
Payroll 

UAAL as a %
of Covered

Payroll 

6/30/08** $ 776,166,719 $ 641,167,624 $ 134,999,095 82.6% $ 155,115,302 87.0%
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

NOTE 13: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

The schedule of funding progress, which is presented as required supplementary information immediately following
the notes to these financial statements, provides multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

** A new State Law authorized the creation of risk pools by CalPERS and required mandatory participation of small
employers to help reduce large fluctuations in their contribution rates. As an employer with less than 100 active
members, the Agency is now required to participate in the risk pool. Under this pooling method, assets and liabilities
of the participant employers are aggregated. As such, individual employer's retirement data is no longer available.

NOTE 14 : OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

This note includes the information required by GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The Agency has elected to implement GASB
Statement No. 45, effective with the year ended December 31, 2008. 

Description of the Plan

The Agency participates as a single-employer in the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA)
provided through the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). Employees can choose one of
four medical options: Blue Shield, HMO, Kaiser, PERSCare PPO, or PERSChoice PPO. In addition, dental and
vision insurance are provided to employees, spouses, and dependents at no cost to the employee, through the
Association of California Water Agencies Health Benefit Authority (ACWA-HBA). 

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Agency had 22 retired employees participating in the
program. The Agency currently has 55 active employees who may become eligible to retire and receive benefits in
the future. Employees become eligible to retire and receive Agency-paid medical, dental, and vision benefits upon
attainment of age 55 and 10 years of Agency service. 

The Agency does not issue a separate stand-alone financial report for its OPEB plan. 

Funding Policy

For active employees and dependents, the Agency contributes to the plan at a rate equal to the average of the
premiums for all CalPERS plans available, excluding the plan with the lowest premium and the plan with the highest
premium, in any given year. The Agency's contribution was $1 per month plus 90% of the maximum contribution.
The contribution is increased annually by 5%. As of December 31, 2009, the Agency has not established a formal
funding policy or trust to maintain future required contributions. The Agency is currently funding the benefits on a
pay-as-you-go basis.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Agency's annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the Agency, an
amount that is actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.  The ARC
represents a level of funding, that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years.
The following table shows the components of the Agency's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount contributed to
the plan, and the changes in the Agency's net OPEB obligation. For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
the Agency's annual cost for the healthcare plan was $716,066 and $722,519, respectively.  The Agency's
cumulative net pension obligation at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $1,074,742 and $539,822, respectively.
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NOTE 14 : OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

2009 2008

Annual required contribution
Service cost at year-end $ 303,064 $ 303,064
30 year amortization of funded liability 419,455 419,455

Total annual required contribution 722,519 722,519

Interest on net pension obligation 26,991 -
Adjustment on net pension obligation (33,444) -

Annual pension cost 716,066 722,519

Employer contributions (181,146) (182,697)
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 539,822 -

Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 1,074,742 $ 539,822

Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost
Actual Employer

Contribution
Percentage
Contributed Net Ending OPEB

12/31/2008 $ 722,519 $ 182,697 %25 $ 539,822
12/31/2009 $ 716,066 $ 181,146 %25 $ 1,074,742

Fiscal year 2008 was the year of implementation of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. The Agency has elected to implement the statement
prospectively. Therefore, prior year comparative data is not available. In future years, three-year trend information
will be presented. 

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan based on an actuarial study using age-adjusted premiums as of December 31, 2008
(the most recent actuarial report), was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Active employees $ 3,871,944
Retired employees 2,898,513

6,770,457

Actuarial value of plan assets -

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 6,770,457

Funded Ratio (actuarial value of plan assets / AAL) 0.00%

Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 4,659,844

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll %145
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NOTE 14 : OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Actuarial valuations for an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continuous
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates about the future are formulated.
Although the valuation results are based on the values which the Agency's actuarial consultant believes are
reasonable assumptions, the valuation results reflect a long-term perspective and, as such, are merely an estimate
of what future costs may actually be. Deviations in any of several factors, such as future interest rates, medical cost
inflation, Medicare coverage, and changes in marital status, could result in actual costs being less or greater than
estimated. 

The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, will present multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of the plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. Because 2008
was the year of implementation of GASB Statement No. 45 and the Agency elected to apply the statement
prospectively, only one year is presented in the schedule at this time. In future years, required trend data will be
presented. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Calculations of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the 2008 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a
5.0% investment rate of return. The turnover rates were taken from a standard actuarial table according to the
Crocker-Sarason Table T-5 less mortality, decreased by 20% at all ages. This factor was expected to match
historical Agency turnover experience. Retirement rates for the valuation were based in part on the Agency's own
experience and in part on the actuarial consultant's experience with agencies of similar size and charter. 10% of
future retirees were assumed to waive coverage under PEMHCA. 60% of future retirees were assumed to have
spouses at the time of retirement. Female spouses were assumed to be three years younger than male spouses.
The healthcare trend rates are based on the actuarial consultant's knowledge of the general healthcare environment
and the specific coverages offered by the Agency. 

NOTE 15: RISK MANAGEMENT

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Agency provides property, liability, and workers’
compensation insurance through the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority
(ACWAJPIA), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for
several water districts and agencies (See Note 16). 

Public Officials, Auto and General Liability: Annual deposits are paid by member agencies and are adjusted
retrospectively to cover costs. The first $1,000,000 in coverage is pooled under a risk-sharing plan with other
agencies in ACWAJPIA. $60,000,000 in additional coverage was purchased by ACWAJPIA. 

Property Insurance: Annual deposits are paid by member agencies and are adjusted retrospectively to cover costs.
The Agency has a $10,000 deductible for buildings, personal property and mobile equipment and a $1,000
deductible for licensed vehicles under this program. The first $50,000 in coverage is pooled under a risk-sharing plan
with other agencies in ACWAJPIA. $100,000,000 in additional coverage was purchased by ACWAJPIA.

Fidelity Coverage: The Agency has a $1,000 deductible for public employee fidelity insurance coverage. The first
$100,000 in coverage is pooled under a risk-sharing plan with other agencies in ACWAJPIA. $1,000,000 in
additional coverage was purchased by ACWAJPIA. 
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NOTE 15: RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Workers’ Compensation: Annual deposits are paid by member agencies and are adjusted retrospectively to cover
costs. The first $2,000,000 in coverage is pooled under a risk-sharing plan with other agencies in ACWAJPIA.
Additional coverage to the statutory limit was purchased by ACWAJPIA. 

During the past three years, settled claims resulting from all risk losses have not exceeded the Agency’s insurance
coverage.

NOTE 16: JOINT VENTURE

The Agency participates in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the Association of California
Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWAJPIA). The relationship between the ACWAJPIA and the
Agency is such that ACWAJPIA is not a component unit of the Agency for financial reporting purposes. 

As more fully discussed in Note 15, ACWAJPIA is organized pursuant to provisions of the California Government
Code for the purpose of providing insurance coverage for its member agencies. ACWAJPIA is governed by a board
consisting of a representative from each member agency. The board controls the operations of ACWAJPIA,
including selection of management and approving operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member
agencies beyond their representation on the board. Each member pays a premium commensurate with the level of
coverage requested. 

Audited financial information for the Authority for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009 was as follows:

Total Assets $ 124,067,027
Total Liabilities $ 83,993,363

Net Assets $ 40,073,664
Total Revenues $ 27,377,336
Total Expenses $ 25,663,970

Change in Net Assets $ 1,713,366

NOTE 17: AGREEMENT WITH PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

The Agency has entered into several agreements with Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) to facilitate the
development, acquisition, construction and operation of several hydro-electric powerhouses within the Agency. 

South Fork Power Purchase Contract - The Agency constructed a series of dams, reservoirs, powerhouses and
related facilities, collectively called the South Fork Power Project (Project). The Agency is the sole owner of the
facilities and is responsible for their continued operation. All electric power generated by the facilities must be sold to
PG&E. PG&E has agreed to pay all debt service on the $62,000,000 revenue bonds used to finance the project plus
$12,500 each month and other miscellaneous amounts for surplus water. The agreement is in effect until July 1,
2010.

Sly Creek Power Project Memorandum of Understanding - The Agency constructed a hydro-electric powerhouse and
related facilities, collectively called the Sly Creek Power Project (Project). The Agency is the sole owner of the
facilities and is responsible for their continued operation. All electric power generated by the facilities must be sold to
PG&E. PG&E has agreed to pay all debt service on the $16,000,000 revenue bonds, issued in 1981, which were
used to finance the construction of the project, plus all expenses of operations, and an additional amount per kilowatt
hour generated. The facilities belong solely to the Agency. The agreement is in effect until July 1, 2010. 

On January 1, 1994, the Agency refunded the outstanding 1981 Sly Creek Project Hydro-Electric Revenue Bonds.
Pursuant to the Power Purchase Contract dated March 26, 1981, the 1993 Sly Creek Power Project Hydro-Electric
Refunding Revenue Bonds are special obligations of the Agency and payable primarily from the semiannual
payments from PG&E.
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NOTE 17: AGREEMENT WITH PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY (Continued)

On March 18, 1993, PG&E and the Agency entered into an agreement to split the savings in connection with
issuance of the 1993 Sly Creek Power Project Hydro-Electric Refunding Revenue Bonds. The savings derived from
the refunding will be applied in the following order: 1) The Agency will be reimbursed for expenses incurred plus
interest on those expenses in connection with the refunding; 2) One-half (1/2) of the remaining excess will be put into
the Operation and Maintenance account; and 3) One-half (1/2) will be retained by the Agency. This same savings
arrangement also applies to the 2004 Sly Creek Power Refunding Revenue Bonds. 

At its April 28, 2009 Board meeting, the Agency agreed to enter into a ten year power purchase agreement with
PG&E beginning July 1, 2010.  Revenue to the Agency from this agreement is a combination of variable, market
based payments and a fixed monthly payment, the combined amount currently estimated to be $1,900,000 per
month or $22,800,000 per year.  Operations of the facilities will continue to be the responsibility of the Agency.

NOTE 18: AGREEMENT WITH NORTH YUBA WATER DISTRICT

North Yuba Water District – In May of 2005, an agreement was reached with North Yuba Water District (NYWD),
previously known as the Yuba County Water District, that defines the settlement of water rights and the disposition of
net hydroelectric project revenues beginning July 1, 2010.  The agreement provides first for the payment of normal
operating and maintenance expenses for the project, repayment of re-licensing expenses incurred by the Agency,
payment of a minimal annual amount to the Agency and NYWD, the creation of a 15% working capital reserve, and
the creation of a $15,000,000 contingency reserve.  Following the satisfaction of the obligations, then the remaining
funds, or net power revenues are distributed equally between the Agency and NYWD.     

NOTE 19: RELICENSING

The Agency has been preparing for the relicensing of its Power Projects as required by the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC). In connection with the relicensing, the Agency has incurred expenses, entered into
service contracts, and established cash reserves to pay for anticipated costs. Costs incurred for the relicensing are
being capitalized, and will be amortized over the life of the new license once it has been issued by FERC. Total cost
capitalized as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $5,583,820 and $5,425,924, respectively. The
relicensing process is nearing its completion. The current FERC license expired on March 31, 2009. Until the
relicensing process is completed, operations continue under the current FERC license conditions. The Agency
anticipates it will have sufficient resources to complete the relicensing process. 
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR CalPERS PENSION PLAN

Schedule of Funding Progress for PERS
(Risk Pool as a Whole)

Actuarial
Valuation

 Date
Normal Accrued

Liability
Actuarial Value of

Assets 

Liability
(Excess
Assets) 

Funded
 Status

Annual
Covered
Payroll 

UAAL as a %
of Covered

Payroll 

6/30/06** $ 620,492,183 $ 501,707,110 $ 118,785,073 80.9% $ 126,049,770 94.2%
6/30/07** $ 699,663,524 $ 576,069,687 $ 123,593,837 82.3% $ 139,334,562 88.7%
6/30/08** $ 776,166,719 $ 641,167,624 $ 134,999,095 82.6% $ 155,115,302 87.0%

** A new State Law authorized the creation of risk pools by PERS and required mandatory participation of small
employers to help reduce large fluctuations in their contribution rates. As an employer with less than 100 active
members, the Agency is required to participate in the risk pool. Under this pooling method, assets and liabilities of
the participant employers are aggregated. As such, individual employer's retirement data is no longer available.
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR CalPERS OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB

Actuarial
Valuation

 Date
Normal Accrued

Liability
Actuarial Value of

Assets 

Liability
(Excess
Assets) 

Funded
 Status

Annual
Covered
Payroll 

UAAL as a %
of Covered

Payroll 

12/31/08 $ 6,770,457 $ - $ 6,770,457 0% $ 4,370,322 154.9%
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SOUTH FEATHER WATER & POWER AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - WATER DIVISION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Final
Budgeted
Amounts Actual

Variance with
Final Budget
Over (Under)

OPERATING REVENUE

Domestic water sales $ 2,600,000 $ 2,444,993 $ (155,007)
Irrigation water sales 240,000 229,598 (10,402)
Sale of electricity 720,200 927,559 207,359
Other services 456,000 619,750 163,750

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 4,016,200 4,221,900 205,700

OPERATING EXPENSES

Source of supply 14,000 14,113 (113)
Water treatment 752,749 565,344 187,405
Environmental health and safety 95,259 74,778 20,481
Transmission and distribution 1,434,001 1,308,958 125,043
Customer accounts 567,946 279,739 288,207
Plant operations 584,262 265,969 318,293
General and administrative 1,195,530 2,502,050 (1,306,520)
Other operating expenses - 54,889 (54,889)

Less: expense credits - (214,105) 214,105
Depreciation - 804,236 (804,236)
Amortization - 8,913 (8,913)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,643,747 5,664,884 (1,012,224)

OPERATING LOSS (627,547) (1,442,984) (806,524)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

System capacity charges 150,000 28,490 (121,510)
Interest and penalty income 50,000 36,502 (13,498)
Property taxes 495,000 517,253 22,253
ERAF surcharge - 4 4
Loss on sale and disposition of fixed assets - (4,207) (4,207)
Interest expense - (233,792) (233,792)

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 695,000 344,250 (350,750)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 67,453 (1,098,734) (1,157,274)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from developers - 48,048 48,048

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 67,453 (1,050,686) $ (1,118,139)

NET ASSETS JANUARY 1, 2009 25,833,588

NET ASSETS DECEMBER 31, 2009 $ 24,782,902
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPUANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDmNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
South Feather Water & Power Agency
Oroville, Califomia

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of South Feather Water & Power Agency. as of and
for the year ended December 31. 2009, which comprise South Feather Water & Power Agency's basic financial statements
and have issued our report thereon dated April 12, 2010, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, the State Controllers Minimum Audit Requirements for Califomia
Special Districts and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment AUditing Standards. issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered South Feather Water & Power Agency's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of South Feather Water & Power
Agency's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of South
Feather Water & Power Agency's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Agency's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether South Feather Water & Power Agency's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws. regulations, contracts.
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However. providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disdosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters tha1 we reported to management of the South Feather Water & Power Agency in a separate letter
dated April 12, 2010.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties.

Sacramento, California
April 12, 2010

PRINCIPALS

Chris A. Mann, CPA, CFP' John R. Urrutia. CPA' Michelle O. Nelson, CPA, CFE, eVA • Kriss Ann Mann, CPA. CCPS

Christine L. Collins. EA' Justin J. Williams, CPA, CVA • Neil J. Beeman. CPA
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